
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE)

Date Thursday 9 June 2016
Time 1.30 pm
Venue Committee Room 1A, County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A
Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend.
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman’s 

agreement.

1. Introductions, Welcome and Apologies  
2. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2016  (Pages 1 - 6)
3. Declarations of interest, if any  
4. Matters Arising  
5. Chairs Comments  
6. RE Inspector Report  (Pages 7 - 12)
7. Presentation to SACRE Members on Islamaphobia across County 

Durham by Mr G McArdle  
8. Discussion Item 1: Teaching Assistants and Religious Education  
9. Discussion Item 2: Islam in Schools  
10. Date of the next meeting  
11. Any other business  
12. Any resolution relating to the exclusion of the public during the 

discussion of items containing exempt information  

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham

1 June 2016



To: The Members of the Standing Advisory Council on Religious 
Education

1. Church of England 

N Chapman, Revd D Lindley, K Passmore, R Sansom and 
P Snowden

2. Other Religious Denominations and Faiths

J Bainbridge - Methodist Church
S Brown - Assemblies of God
V Gallant - Judaism
W Gray - Buddhism
B Guymer - Baptist Church
J Kidd - Methodist Church
J Nicholls - Society of Friends (Quaker)
I Osborne - Roman Catholic
J Pallister - Roman Catholic
S Purba - Sikhism
Bhakti Rasa Dasa - Hinduism
C Spencer - Bahá’í Faith
M Stephenson - United Reform Church
M Turner - Islam

3. Teachers Associations

V Bain - NUT
S Baker - NUT
A Hartley - NASUWT
P Lamb - SHA
S Lupton - RE Curriculum Group
C Newton - RE Curriculum Group
P Welch - NUT

4. County Council Representatives

Councillors P Brookes, M Dixon, A Liversidge and W Stelling

Specialist Inspector (Religious Education)

Isobel Short

Contact: Paula Nicholson Tel: 03000 269710



1

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL

At a Meeting of Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) held in 
Committee Room 1B, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 3 March 2016 at 1.30 pm

Present:

P Welch (Chairman) In the Chair

Church of England
N Chapman, K Passmore and R Sansom

Other Religious Denominations and Faiths
J Bainbridge - Methodist Church
I Osborne - Roman Catholic
J Pallister - Roman Catholic
Bhakti Rasa Dasa - Hinduism
C Spencer - Bahá’í Faith
M Turner - Islam

Teachers Associations
S Baker - NUT
S Lupton - RE Curriculum Group

County Council Representatives
Councillors P Brookes and M Dixon

Specialist Inspector (Religious Education)
Isobel Short

Voluntary and Community Sector Officer
Ian Hunter Smart

1 Introductions, Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies for absence had been received from V Bain, V Gallant, A Hartley, J Kidd, 
Revd D Lindley, J Nicholls and P Snowdon.

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting in particular R Sanson and C 
Newton who had recently been appointed on Durham SACRE. Everyone introduced 
themselves and gave a brief description of their background.

The Chairman also advised members that Revd D Lindley and P Snowden had also 
been appointed as Church of England representatives.



2

2 Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2015, were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.

3 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.

4 Matters Arising 

Councillor Dixon referred to Durham County Council representatives on SACRE 
and indicated that he did not feel that the representatives needed to be altered at 
present.

5 Chairs Comments 

The Chairman referred to the format of meetings and that a meeting of the working 
group had been held before Christmas where it had been suggested that SACRE 
Members break out into working groups within its meeting. These working groups 
would focus on particular issues as identified in the agenda.

The Chairman referred to the draft letter which had been circulated with the agenda 
which he had produced in conjunction with the Specialist Inspector for Religious 
Education and had drafted on behalf of Durham SACRE to be circulated to Head 
Teachers and Chair of Governors to provide some information and updates about 
Durham SACRE, as discussed at the last meeting. They had evaluated the leaflet 
from NASACRE but felt that it was more suitable to academies and sought 
Members thoughts on producing their own leaflet to be distributed with the letter.

Members discussed the letter and suggested some minor amendments. The 
Chairman indicated that he would amend the letter and work with the Specialist 
Inspector for Religious Education to produce a leaflet which would be sent with the 
letter.

6 RE Inspector Report 

Members considered the report of the Specialist Inspector for Religious Education 
which was the RE Inspector Report for the Spring Term 2016 (for copy of report, 
see file of minutes).

The report looked at the following:-

 Durham RE Networks
 Teaching RE in PPA Time
 The New GCSEs
 GCSE RE Conference
 Teaching Christianity
 Agreed Syllabus



3

 National Documents on Religious Education
 GCSE Religious Studies Questionnaire Analysis

Members discussed the contents of the report.

C Spencer sought clarification if schools have to pay for a delegate to attend the 
Durham RE Networks. The Specialist Inspector for Religious Education indicated 
that if the school had a service level agreement then there was no charge. If no 
agreement was in place it would cost £80 per delegate.

Councillor Dixon sought clarification about academies that had not bought a service 
level agreement. The Specialist Inspector for Religious Education responded that 
the Education Development Service work with any type of school 
(maintained/academy) who have bought a service level agreement.

S Baker referred to Teaching Assistants who deliver RE in PPA time, in particular 
that a different way should be found to ensure qualified teachers deliver RE. 
Members then discussed the role of Teaching Assistants and RE related support 
that can be considered for them in this role. Members discussed this issue in detail 
and the Chairman suggested that this could be discussed as a discussion topic at 
the next meeting.

Resolved: That the report be noted.

7 Discussion Item 1: Islam in Schools 

The Chairman asked Members to divide into two groups and for each group to 
discuss one of the discussion topics which were ‘Islam in Schools’ and ‘Changes in 
Key Stage 4’.

Following the group discussion of ‘Islam in Schools’, the Chairman indicated that 
they had discussed lessons about Islam at a County Durham primary school that 
sparked an anti-Islam protest.

The group also discussed their concerns about the reaction to teaching of Islam in 
schools and suggested that SACRE write to EDS to create a stronger mandate for 
education and community cohesion and suggesting a training event for Heads, 
Governors and Community Leaders to give a greater understanding of Islam and 
how to deal with issues.

The Specialist Inspector for Religious Education referred to SMSC which includes 
British Values and that a seminar had been held in June 2015 on British Values.  
This included a question time panel made up of different faith members in order to 
focus on the British Values of mutual respect and tolerance of all faiths and beliefs. 
The evaluation of the seminar showed a particularly positive response to the input 
from the question panel which included members of SACRE.
 
Members commented that the issues had a lot to do with the media and 
misrepresentation.



4

8 Discussion Item 2: Changes in Key Stage 4 

Councillor Brookes Chaired the discussion group on ‘Changes in Key Stage 4 
(KS4)’ and the following key points were raised during the discussion:-

The purpose of RE at KS4 is not consistently clear: is it an academic milestone 
qualification for future employment? Or is it 'core RE', the legal requirement to 
deliver RE as per development and preparation for adult life?

Schools make the decision via their timetabling provision and sometimes they are 
trying to mix the two purposes with an academic subject being taught with 
insufficient time or clarity.

Schools need to make the decision about which fight to take on. Is RE available to 
all pupils with a personal slant or is it an option for a full academic course?

This scene was complicated by its insertion with citizenship and PSH(C)E in some 
schools.

Durham RE Syllabus currently has no provision for a KS4 non-GCSE option.

The Specialist Inspector for Religious Education had provided a paper summarising 
the options that may be offered by schools currently so that SACRE could 
appreciate the current situation in preparation for the content of the RE syllabus 
revision in 2017.

The group looked at whether the new syllabus should provide a recommended 
curriculum for non-exam KS4?

The group decided that there needed to be guidance on statutory requirement, 
what the school could offer and how this could be taught to show progression 
through levels of progress. Whichever option was chosen needed to meet statutory 
requirements.

New GCSE specifications required a lot of content and subject knowledge and 
needed to ensure continuity back through into Key Stage 3 to build required 
knowledge on what was sometimes restricted time. The bridging unit was great but 
some of the units may need tweaking.

The new agreed syllabus needs to address assessment clearly with continuity in 
terms of how you assess student progress.

It was suggested that SACRE proactively follow up contact with Heads and 
Governors to ensure that the expressed purpose of the syllabus is clear and 
schools are encouraged to support that internally through staffing and timetable.

9 Date and Time of Future Meetings 

The Clerk asked Members to agree the following dates for future meetings of 
SACRE for 2016/17:-



5

Thursday 9 June 2016
Thursday 3 November 2016
Thursday 2 March 2017

Members considered amending the commencement time of the meetings from 1.30 
pm to 1.00 pm.

Resolved: That the 2016/17 meetings of Durham SACRE be arranged as detailed 
above to commence at 1.30 pm.





RE Matters - The RE Adviser Report
Summer term 2016 1

RE Networks

RE networks have continued this term with 
the secondary RE Talking Network on 19th 
April. This is an informal after-school network 
which gives any RE teacher the chance to 
meet others and talk all things RE.
The primary RE Talking Network will be 
held at DLC on 12th July, 4.00–5.30pm. 

The more formal primary RE Network was 
held on 10th May at DLC from 1.00– 4.00pm. 
Delegates explored a range of teaching and 
learning activities that support good learning 
in RE. These included a literacy strategy to 
help pupils produce extended writing on the 
story of Divali, map from memory, annotating 
passages from scriptures in order to 
understand beliefs, use of artefacts and 
pictures. 35 delegates attended this network.
The secondary RE Network will take place 
on 27th June, 1.30–4.30pm.

Primary and secondary networks will continue 
next term:

Primary (1.00-4.00 at DLC)
 13 October 2015  
 15 March 2017
 14 June 2017

Secondary (1.15-4.00 at DLC)
 24 November 2016
 13 February 2017
 26 June 2017

GCSE Conference

Durham EDS held a conference on 18th 
March for leaders and teachers of RE as 
they prepare for the introduction of the 
new GCSEs this September (see below). 
25 delegates attended including some RE 
leaders from neighbouring local 
authorities. There were presentations 
from:

 Exam Boards – AQA, Edexcel, 
WJEC

 Sharon Lupton, Head of RE at 
Sedgefield School

 Islamic Diversity Centre, Newcastle
 Kate Christopher from RE Today 

Services
 

NEW GCSEs in RS 
(Religious Studies)

First teaching of the new RS GCSEs will 
begin this September, with first 
examination June 2018. The new GCSE 
is much more focussed on the study of 
religion and religions, although schools 
still have the option to study some ethical 
issues. The qualification is more rigorous 
and students will have to demonstrate 
quite detailed knowledge of the beliefs 
and practices of religions. Students must 
now study 2 religions from the following 
list: Buddhism, Christianity, Catholic 
Christianity, Hinduism, Islam, Judaism, 
Sikhism. Schools cannot choose both 
Christianity and Catholic Christianity. 



RE Matters - The RE Adviser Report
Summer term 2016 2

Reference can be made to non-religious 
beliefs e.g. humanism in the course (this 
has not been without controversy).

There has been quite a significant delay in 
the publication of draft specifications for 
GCSE RS, which has obviously caused 
some difficulties for RE leaders in schools. 
Some schools who begin to teach RS 
GCSE from Year 9 have also been 
teaching the new GCSE before 
specifications have been validated.

 Contribution of RE to 
British Values

All schools are required to actively 
promote British values with their pupils. 
RE has a particular role to play in the 
promotion of mutual respect and tolerance 
of other faiths and beliefs, particularly in 
how it helps pupils engage with people 
from a whole variety of faiths and non-
religious beliefs. 

Primary schools are doing this in a variety 
of ways including visits to faith 
communities in the area e.g. the local 
gurdwara, mandir, mosque, church and 
Durham Cathedral. Faith visitors are also 
invited to school to make a contribution to 
RE and Collective Worship. Some primary 
schools are engaging in an enquiry unit: 
What can we find out about our local 
religious communities?

Some secondary schools have worked 
together to develop enquiry learning 
around religious diversity in the region 
using question such as:

 Is anybody religious anymore in the 
North East? 

 Is religion dead?
 Do we live in a religious diverse 

society?

This has involved the study of religious 
diversity and changing landscape of 
religions and religious belief through the 
analysis of census data as well as  

meeting, questioning and discussing a 
range of issues with a variety of faith and 
non-faith believers (e.g. through an RE 
Faiths Conference, visits to faith 
communities, email and skype contact).

It is hoped that schools across the region 
can form their own hubs (e.g. across 
County Durham, in Hartlepool, 
Sunderland, South Tyneside) to extend 
and develop this work in RE. This will 
enable students to broaden their 
knowledge and understanding of what is 
meant by religious diversity, as well as 
actively encourage respect and tolerance 
for all.

Local Partnerships

On behalf of SACRE and Durham EDS I 
continue to meet with our local RE 
partners and discuss ways to support RE.

 Karenza Passmore (NERLRC) 
regularly attends RE conferences, 
courses and networks in order to 
support colleagues and share her 
invaluable ideas and resources.

 Elizabeth Baker is a local storyteller 
with particular expertise in supporting 
RE e.g. through work on northern 
saints, Christmas, Easter. She 
regularly makes presentations at the 
primary RE networks. She is currently 
developing work around the Spirit in 
Stone project, which helps schools to 
make the most of local church visits.

 I have met with members of  the 
Education Service at Durham 
Cathedral in order to discuss ways in 
which pupils at all key stages can visit 



RE Matters - The RE Adviser Report
Summer term 2016 3

the Cathedral to support their RE 
learning. I will attend a school session 
in early June at the cathedral.

RE Hub

You may recall that a bid was made for 
national hub money to enable teachers to 
develop support networks across the 
area. Karenza Passmore at NERLRC 
administers the finances. The hubs have 
had some success, with a small group of 
teachers meeting at Cuthbert House to 
develop some planning around the new 
GCSEs. However, success has generally 
been limited with the primary group not 
becoming established. Attendance is a 
real issue for busy teachers. It is 
anticipated that the existing teacher group 
will continue with the addition of:
 a teacher group around South Shields 

to develop work for engagement with 
local faith communities

 a small group of primary Co-ordinators 
trialling RE training materials.

Withdrawal from RE and 
Collective Worship

There has been an increased number of 
queries from schools and parents about 
parental rights to withdraw their children 
from RE and/or Collective Worship. The 
RE Adviser has produced some guidance 
for use by local SACREs and schools to 
help address some of the concerns and 
issues which arise. This guidance is 
available from SACRE or the RE Adviser. 
If you wish to discuss any individual 
queries or questions, please contact 
Isobel Short.

RE, Academies, Free 
Schools, White Paper 

and all that

As always there has been a great deal of 
noise and activity in the wider RE world as 
professionals react to the latest 

educational initiatives and the implications 
they have for RE in schools. 
Although RE and SACREs are not 
mentioned in the recent White Paper, the 
emphasis on all schools becoming 
Academies has consequences for RE, 
SACREs and the production and use of 
locally Agreed Syllabuses. Various RE 
Advisers and Lecturers have been writing 
to MPs and the Secretary of State for 
Education in order to gain some clarity of 
the current position and thinking of the 
government. Below are some of the 
responses received so far.

COMPULSORY RE

In response to a question in the House on 
14th April 2016, Nick Gibb, Schools 
Minister, stated: 

“Religious Education remains compulsory 
for all state funded schools, including 
academies and free schools, at all key 
stages. The Government firmly believes in 
the importance of RE. High quality RE can 
develop children’s knowledge of values 
and traditions of Britain and other 
countries, and foster understanding 
among different faiths and cultures.”

This was reiterated in a letter sent to Dr. 
Robert Bowie, Canterbury Christ Church 
University, on behalf of Secretary of State 
for Education:

“I can assure you that RE continues to be 
a relevant and important subject in the 
curriculum. There is no specific reference 
to RE in the Schools White Paper: 
Educational Excellence Everywhere. The 
government still firmly believes, however, 
in the importance of RE to develop 
children’s knowledge of the values and 
traditions of Britain and other countries, 
and to foster understanding among 
different faiths and cultures. This is why 
RE remains compulsory for all state 
funded schools, including academies and 
free schools, at all key stages and why all 
schools have a duty to teach a broad and 
balanced curriculum.”



RE Matters - The RE Adviser Report
Summer term 2016 4

This affirms the government’s position on 
the position of RE in the school 
curriculum. 

AGREED SYLLABUS AND ACADEMIES

The letter also clarifies the type of RE 
curriculum which Academies and free 
Schools should offer. 

“Academies are required to have a 
curriculum for RE which meets the same 
requirements for locally agreed 
syllabuses, although they may choose 
whether to adopt a locally agreed syllabus 
or develop their own RE provision.”

In other words, whilst Academies and free 
schools need not follow the locally Agreed 
Syllabus, they must use an RE Syllabus 
which is based on the same statutory 
requirements i.e. that RE “must reflect the 
fact that religious traditions in great Britain 
are in the main Christian, whilst taking 
account of the teachings and practices of 
the other principal religions represented in 
Great Britain”.

SACREs

If all schools become Academies and 
local authorities no longer have any role in 
school improvement, it would appear that 
SACREs no longer have a function. The 
letter addresses this issue:

“You asked about the government’s 
expectation of local authorities in respect 
of RE. The Government does not currently 
have any plans to remove local authority 
duty to establish a SACRE. SACREs 
continue to play an important role in 
supporting schools to teach high quality 
RE and we recognise the contribution that 
SACRE members bring to the quality of 
RE. Local authorities continue to have a 
statutory duty to support the activities of 
SACRE and we know that many 
academies and SACREs work together to 
provide high quality RE for the young 
people in their local area.”

KS3 Unit – What Do 
Christians Believe?

We are developing a unit of work for KS3 
students on fundamental Christian beliefs 
to include the concepts of: love, 
forgiveness, salvation, sacrifice, 
resurrection, eternal life, uniqueness of all 
humans, compassion, justice and 
reconciliation. Students will study what is 
meant by these concepts and the impact 
these have today for individuals and 
communities. 

The secondary network is beginning to 
share ideas and resources to help 
students grapple with the big concepts. 
This includes film and documentary clips, 
music, stories, visual aids.

If you have any ideas or resources which 
could be shared, please send them to 
Isobel.



Guidance on parental right of withdrawal from Religious Education and Collective Worship
Produced for use by Durham, Hartlepool, South Tyneside, Sunderland SACREs, May 2016 

1

Right of Withdrawal from Religious Education and Collective 
Worship Guidance

Introduction
This paper has been produced for use by the following SACREs: Durham, 
Hartlepool, South Tyneside, Sunderland. It gives some basic guidance for schools 
when dealing with requests from parents for withdrawal of their children from 
Religious Education and collective worship. 

Rights of Parents and Responsibilities of Schools
All schools (including academies and free schools) must provide Religious Education 
(RE) and collective worship for all their pupils. 

Parents have the right to withdraw their children from all or part of RE and/or 
collective worship. When this happens, the school remains responsible for the 
supervision of the child and the health and safety of the child remains paramount.  
However, this should not incur extra cost to the school i.e. a child need not be 
supervised by a teacher or an assistant in a room on their own. It is usual for the 
child to be supervised in a library or study centre or with another class of pupils. 
SACRE does not recommend that children remain in the back of the RE classroom 
or assembly hall.  

Parents do not need to give reasons for their request for the withdrawal of their child 
from RE and / or collective worship. Senior leaders may choose, however, to discuss 
their reasons with them. This helps avoid any misunderstanding there may be about 
the nature and purpose of RE and collective worship, including visits to faith 
communities and places of worship. (Note: RE and collective worship in schools are 
educational. RE must not be designed to convert pupils or to urge a particular 
religion or religious belief on pupils).

Schools are not responsible for providing alternative provision, an alternative 
curriculum or extra work. The school should not incur any extra cost. For example, a 
parent cannot ask for extra English or Maths work to be given to their child. No extra 
marking should take place.

Parents do not have the right to withdraw their children from other curriculum 
subjects (with the exception of sexual education) even when they cover aspects of 
religions and beliefs. Parents cannot determine the nature of content in these 
subjects. For example, pupils may encounter some religious ideas, beliefs or 
practices through Art, Music, Geography, English, History. Parents have a right to 
withdraw their children from the teaching of Religious Education not the reference to 
religions in other curriculum areas. 



Guidance on parental right of withdrawal from Religious Education and Collective Worship
Produced for use by Durham, Hartlepool, South Tyneside, Sunderland SACREs, May 2016 

2

Further Considerations

 The right of withdrawal from RE and collective worship remains with the 
parent and not the child (apart from pupils in sixth forms who can decide for 
themselves). It would not be acceptable for a child of any age to tell the 
school that they do not want to be in RE lessons or that their parents have 
told them to tell the school. Parents must communicate directly with the 
school.

 It cannot be assumed that parents will exercise the right to withdraw their child 
from both RE and collective worship. For example, parents may choose to 
withdraw their child from collective worship but may wish for them to remain in 
RE lessons as part of their formal curriculum entitlement.

 Schools should not make assumptions that parents with particular beliefs will 
want to withdraw their child from RE and or collective worship. It is also not 
the case that every child in a family may be withdrawn from RE and / or 
collective worship. It is the right of the parents to approach the school not the 
responsibility of the school to approach the parents (including sets of parents 
from particular year groups or faith positions).

 Schools should be aware of issues surrounding religion, race and culture and 
ensure that parental right of withdrawal requests do not hamper their 
responsibilities to ensure equality for all and the active promotion of 
fundamental British values.

 SACRE recommends that school leaders request that parents discuss their 
right of withdrawal on an annual basis. This is not statutory but does enable 
regular discussions.

 Teachers (including headteachers although they remain responsible for 
provision) also have a right to withdraw from collective worship and teaching 
of RE although some teachers in church schools do not have this right. For 
further guidance please contact SACRE.

 Whilst SACRE members support the legal right of parents to withdraw their 
children from RE and collective worship they fundamentally believe that 
participation in both is beneficial to children both in terms of their achievement 
and personal development. Good RE enables children to develop religious 
literacy by learning about the concept of religion, finding out about the beliefs 
and practices of a range of religions and beliefs and developing skills of 
critical evaluation, as appropriate. RE promotes the attitudes of respect and 
tolerance and   gives opportunities for children to reflect on their own ideas, 
experiences, values and beliefs. RE should not promote or encourage a 
certain set of beliefs. Collective worship should be educational and for all, 
giving opportunities for children to reflect on shared human experiences and 
values within the school community. As such it makes a key contribution to 
the spiritual, moral, social and cultural development of all children. SACRE 
recommends that schools discuss the purpose of RE and collective worship 
with parents and also ensure that all staff within the school clearly understand 
the nature and purpose of what RE and Collective worship is and is not.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2016
	6 RE Inspector Report
	Right of Withdrawal from Religious Education and Collective Worship Guidance


